
 

 
 
 
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3906 if you need it in large print, audio 

or another format. 

 
 

 

 

Agenda 

Civic Centre,  
Arnot Hill Park,  

Arnold, 
Nottinghamshire,  

NG5 6LU 
 

 

 

Joint Consultative and Safety 

Committee 
 

 

 

Date: Tuesday 16 November 2021 

Time: 5.30 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Alec Dubberley 

Democratic Services Manager 

0115 901 3906 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

 

Joint Consultative and Safety Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Alex Scroggie 
  

Vice-Chair Councillor Roxanne Ellis 

 
Councillor Boyd Elliott 
Councillor Paul Feeney 
Councillor Helen Greensmith 
Councillor Jennifer Hemingway 
Councillor Paul Wilkinson 

 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

 
Please note that this meeting will be live streamed on the Council's YouTube 
channel and via the website (www.gedling.gov.uk). At the start of the meeting 

the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being broadcast. 
 

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance 

with the Council’s published policy. 
 

For more information about how your personal data is collected and used please 
view our privacy notice https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/  

 
 

http://www.gedling.gov.uk/
https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

Page 

 

1   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions.  

2   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 31 
August 2021 

5 - 7 

3   Declaration of Interests.  

4   Annual Health and Safety Report 9 - 31 

 Report of the Health, Safety and Emergency Planning Officer.  

5   Sickness Absence 33 - 39 

 Report of the Head of HR, Performance and Service Planning.  

6   Minor Changes to the Establishment 41 

 Report of the Head of HR, Performance and Service Planning.  

7   Current Staffing Issues 43 - 44 

 Report of the Head of HR, Performance and Service Planning.  

8   Any other item which the Chair considers urgent.  



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES 
JOINT CONSULTATIVE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday 31 August 2021 

 
Councillor Alex Scroggie (Chair) 

 
Present: Councillor Roxanne Ellis 

Councillor Meredith Lawrence 
Councillor Barbara Miller 

Councillor Sam Smith 
Councillor Paul Wilkinson 

 
Unison: 

 
Alison Hunt 

 

 

Absent: Councillor Boyd Elliott, Councillor Paul Feeney, Councillor Helen 
Greensmith and Councillor Jennifer Hemingway 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

P Adcock, D Archer, A Dubberley and L Juby 

 
44    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS.  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Elliott, Feeney, 
Greensmith and Hemingway. Councillors Lawrence, Miller and Sam 
Smith attended as substitutes. 
 

45    TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 8 JUNE 2021  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

46    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.  
 
Councillor Roxanne Ellis declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 9 as a 
member of the Committee of Gedling Play Forum and would be leaving 
the meeting during its consideration. 
 

47    SICKNESS ABSENCE  
 
The Head of HR Service Planning and Performance introduced a report, 
which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, giving information 
about the current levels of sickness absence in the organisation. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

48    CURRENT STAFFING ISSUES  
 
The Head of HR, Performance and Service Planning presented a report, 
which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, highlighting 
particular issues of interest that relate to the council’s workforce. 
 
During discussion Members wanted to highlight that staff would be 
“returning to the office” rather than “returning to work” as this choice of 
words could lead to a perception that staff were not working when they 
were based at home during the pandemic 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report. 
 

49    MINOR CHANGES TO THE ESTABLISHMENT  
 
The Head of HR, Performance and Service Planning presented a report, 
which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, highlighting minor 
changes to the staffing establishment since the last meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report. 
 

50    ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.  
 
None. 
 

51    EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
That, Members being satisfied that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information that 
under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the 
ensuing reports on the grounds that the reports involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 4 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

52    CONSULTATION CLOSURE- COMMUNITIES AND LEISURE 
STAFFING REVIEW  
 
Councillor Roxanne Ellis left the meeting. 
 
The Head of Communities and Leisure introduced a report, which had 
been circulated in advance of the meeting, making final 
recommendations on the proposed restructure of staffing within the 
Community Relations team. 
 
RESOLVED to: 

Page 6



 

 
1) Note the comments received from staff and trade unions on the 

proposals in the report; and 
 

2) Not to make any recommendations and note that the Chief 
Executive has delegated authority to authorise the 
implementation of the changes. 

 
53    CONSULTATION CLOSURE- FINANCE AND ICT RESTRUCTURE  

 
Councillor Roxanne Ellis re-joined the meeting. 
 
The Head of Finance and IT introduced a report, which had been 
circulated in advance of the meeting, making final recommendations on 
the proposed restructure of staffing within the Service Area. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Note the comments received from staff and trade unions on the 
proposals in the report; and 

 
2) Not to make any recommendations and note that the Chief 

Executive has delegated authority to authorise the 
implementation of the changes. 

 
 
 

The meeting finished at 6.00 pm 
 
 

 
 

Signed by Chair:    
Date:   

  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report to Joint Consultative and Safety Committee 
 
Subject: Corporate Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21 

Date: 16 November 2021 

Author: Health, Safety and Emergency Planning Officer 

Wards Affected 

Borough wide 

Purpose 

To present the Corporate Health and Safety Annual report 2020/21 to the Joint 
Consultative and Safety Committee. 

Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

Recommendations 

THAT: 

1) The Corporate Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21 be noted. 

 

 

1 Background 

1.1 The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 imposes a number of 
obligations on employers, employees and others in regards health, safety 
and welfare in connection with work activities. In relation to the Council’s 
role as an employer, these are executive functions that fall within the remit 
of Cabinet. These statutory duties are separate from the Council’s role as 
an enforcement body, which ensures that other employers within the 
borough comply with their obligation under the Act and other applicable 
Health and Safety (H&S) legislation. It is important to note that the Health, 
Safety and Emergency Planning Officer (HSEPO) is not responsible for 
enforcement of these activities of other employers within the borough 
where the Council is the responsible enforcement body. Those functions 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



are a non-executive functions falling within the remit of the Environment 
and Licensing Committee and the Public Protection service area. 

1.2 Reporting annually on H&S performance is considered good practice by 
the Health and Safety Executive, the Institute of Directors and the Royal 
Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA). The Management of 
Health and Safety at Work regulations 1999 also requires all employers to 
periodically review their H&S management system.  

1.3 Cabinet are asked to receive this annual H&S report to inform them of 
health and safety performance covering the period April 2020 – March 
2021. 

1.4 The Council manages a wide portfolio of services for a Borough of more 
than 117,900 people. Some of these services involve a potential significant 
risk of harm to our staff and others that our work activities could affect. To 
this end, to prevent injury and ill health, the Council’s objective is to have a 
positive health and safety culture, a robust H&S management system and 
be committed to the principles of sensible risk management and 
compliance with our legal obligations. 

1.5 To achieve this the Council has implemented a H&S management system 
that involves all staff, our partners, others and wider Council work 
activities. We retain a specialist Chartered Safety and Health Practitioner 
to maintain this system and train managers and staff to understand and 
control the risks that arise from our service to the community. 

1.6 The HSEPO service and H&S Annual Report supports the Council’s 
priorities and assists service areas in achieving the Council’s overall vision 
of Serving People Improving Lives.  

The HSEPO service supports the following Gedling Plan objectives: 

 High Performing Council: To be a high performing, efficient and 
effective Council, to maintain a positive and supportive working 
environment and strong employee morale and improve use of 
digital technologies 

 Healthy Lifestyles: To promote the health and well-being of our 
residents, to improve health and wellbeing and reduce health 
inequalities. 

1.7 The Annual report covers summarised findings of the impacts of the 
Coronavirus emergency and other factors that have all had a knock-on-
effect to the HSEPO work programme and delivery of planned objectives. 
The report also covers HSEPO support of the Council’s Risk Management 
Strategy and operational risk management.  

Page 10



1.8 In 2020/21, a significant proportion of the HSEPO’s time was taken up 
handling the Council’s response activity to the Covid-19 pandemic. This 
involved joint collaborative response and recovery work across the Council 
and with wider partners. This involved working with officers and Senior 
Leadership Team within the Council both directly and through the 
Council’s Incident Management Team established to respond to the 
pandemic, as well as working with districts and the County Council through 
the Local Resilience Forum and other coordinating groups. The Council’s 
response required additional emergency planning input from officers 
across the Council. Officers across all areas worked together to provide an 
outstanding response managing staffing and furlough, test centre 
mobilisation, humanitarian response, homeworking, remote meetings as 
well as responding at pace to changes in regulation, closure and 
reopening of services and in some areas maintaining services, such as 
waste collection under the most challenging of circumstances. The 
response required complete overhaul of risk assessments to mitigate the 
risk of infection from Covid-19, as well as a risk management around the 
changing ways of working with home working risk assessments required 
for a large proportion of staff. The HSEPO was instrumental in monitoring 
and assessing risk areas throughout the pandemic and supporting the 
ongoing delivery of the Council’s functions throughout 2020/21. 

1.9 Given the impact of the pandemic on health and safety resource, the year 
involved a significant re-prioritisation in work for the HSEPO. The 
pandemic also affected the number of accident and incidents (adverse 
events) reported through the Council’s AssessNET system with a 
significant reduction in 2020/21 from 231 in 2019/20 to just 137 in 2020/21 
this is attributed to the closure of the Council’s leisure facilities for period 
through 2020/21. Staff work related injuries and ill health related cases did 
not see a decrease in 2020/21 and in fact increased from 45-61. These 
statistics however included injury associated with the pandemic, and those 
Covid-19 related incidents. In fact all but one illness and disease report 
related to Covid-19. Hazard reporting and property damage reporting also 
saw a reduction in 2020/21.  

1.10 Whilst routine health and Safety training, usually delivered by the HSEPO 
was reduced through the pandemic, bespoke essential training provided 
by external organisations was undertaken in quarter 3 and 4 including fire 
safety, water safety and vehicle fire safety courses. In addition, throughout 
the pandemic regular safety briefings and guidance were issues to staff by 
the HSEPO. Additional training has already been put in place for 2021/22 
to address risk areas with the provision of an eLearning package to be 
utilised for some essential training needs. 

1.11 Occupational health management continued throughout 2020/21 with a 
change in external supplier. Some support was provided to the HSEPO 
temporarily to deal with the supplier change and support the organisation 

Page 11



with any necessary surgeries. The Covid-19 pandemic did affect the ability 
of certain occupational health sessions to be run but these have now been 
resolved.  

1.12 The annual audit and inspection programme of the HSEPO was impacted 
by the Covid-19 pandemic, however individual risks to services were 
identified and addressed. In respect of business continuity, all services 
reviewed and updated business continuity plans in 2020/21 and the 
Council now has a robust business continuity plan which will be kept under 
regular review.  

1.13 Risk management has remained a priority for the HSEPO throughout 
2020/21 with a separate risk register created to capture Covid-19 risks. 
Effective utilisation of the risk management processes has enabled the 
HSEPO to prioritise work throughout 2020/21 and ensure that any 
significant risks are addressed. The workplan for 2021/22 whilst still linked 
to Covid-19 also addresses any risks which may have emerged due to the 
re-focus of resource in 2020/21 and involves an increase in audit and 
inspections as well as the delivery of training through eLearning and 
review of policies to ensure they remain up to date. 

1.14 2020/21 was a challenging year for all with health and safety being at a 
higher profile across the organisation than ever before. Officers across the 
Council worked together to address risk and protect staff and customers 
throughout the year.  

2 Proposal 

2.1 It is proposed that the Corporate Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21 
at Appendix 1 be noted. 

3 Alternative Options 

3.1 Not to present an annual Health and Safety report, in which case 
Executive members will not be updated on H&S activity across the Council 
and understand whether the Council’s commitment to the management of 
H&S risks are being managed effectively. 

4 Financial Implications 

4.1 There are no financial implications directly arising from this report. 

5 Legal Implications 

5.1 The Council must comply with a number of statutory obligations in the 
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and other H&S legislation, Health 
and Safety Executive Guidance, Approved Codes of Practice and other 

Page 12



industry best practice. 

6 Equalities Implications 

6.1 There are no equalities implications directly arising from this report. 
Equality implications and any reasonable adjustments which may be 
required for staff and customers who fall within a protected characteristic 
category are considered as part of risk assessment, audit and policy 
review for specific functions of the Council and staff roles. 

7 Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications 

7.1 There are no carbon reduction/environmental sustainability implications 
directly arising from this report. 

8 Appendices 

8.1 Appendix 1.  Corporate Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21 

 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 None identified.  

10 Reasons for Recommendations 

10.1 To ensure the Executive is updated in respect of Health and Safety activity 
across the Council in order to provide assurance of the Council’s 
commitment to the management of health and safety and associated risks 
are being managed effectively. 

  

Statutory Officer approval 
 
Approved by the Chief Financial Officer 
Date:  22 October 2021 
 
Approved by the Monitoring Officer  
Date: 26 October 2021 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CORPORATE ANNUAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT 
2020/21 
 
1. Purpose of this report 

 
1.1 This report provides a summary of health and Safety activity of the Council 

for the period of 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 in order to provide assurance 
of the Council’s commitment to the management of health and safety risks 
and the Council’s H&S management system. The report also provides an 
update on the following: 
 

 The Council’s compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements; 

 H&S corporate management system summary; 

 Accidents and incidents reported; 

 Training delivered; 

 Occupational health provision; 

 Inspections and audits; 

 Joint consultation; 

 Partnerships; 

 Key achievements for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021; 

 Planned activity during 2021/22; 

 Risk; 

 Conclusions. 
  
2. Background and Corporate Management 

 
2.1 The health, safety and wellbeing (HSW) arrangements within the Council is 

of paramount importance. The Health, Safety and Emergency Planning 
Officer was a single officer service within the Council, who endeavours to 
continually monitor HSW performance within the authority in order that 
improvements can be identified and action taken to ensure legal compliance, 
financial efficiencies and, most importantly, to safeguard the safety and health 
of staff, customers, volunteers our contractors and others. 

  
2.2 The Health, Safety and Emergency Planning Officer (HSEPO) completed 

work tasks using two comprehensive H&S and Emergency planning / 
Business Continuity work plans during 2020/21. A work plan is a workplace 
strategy aimed at helping to solve problems, boost drive and focus and is 
commonly implemented for a period of twelve months. 

  
2.3 The HSEPO received temporary administration support to address the risk 

area of occupational health duties at the end of Quarter 2. The support lasted 
for 4 months, a couple of days a week from a personal assistance to the 
Senior Leadership Team (SLT).  

Page 15



 
2.4 The coronavirus pandemic required significant resource and maintained this  

high level of demand throughout the year. Unfortunately, due to the nature of 
the emergency, the pandemic required both 100% from the H&S part of the 
role as well as the emergency planning officer role simultaneously. This was 
the most challenging prolonged impact the HSEPO had ever experienced. 
Clearly, one officer could not resource both roles. Therefore, several 
proactive work areas were put on hold to focus on supporting the Council’s 
response and recovery. 

  
2.5 AssessNET is the Council’s main H&S software. The risk assessment module 

on AssessNET is the location for activity risk assessments to be generated, 
stored and accessed. AssessNET remains the main single information 
depository through the AssessNET portal accessed through the Council’s 
intranet page. AssessNET (activity Risk Assessments) saw a rise of 16% in 
activity assessments being generated in response to the Covid-19 
emergency during the year 2020.  

  
2.6 As a result of the second annual risk assessment return, the Council now 

has a better understanding of the risk assessment profile. At the end of data 
collection exercise a new total of 2346 risk assessments were recorded, at 
year end. The 2020/21 return reflected a 100 risk assessment increase (or 
4% increase) compared to the 2019/20 overall return. Bar chart 1 below 
shows the five largest assessments by type at the Council. They are Activity 
Risk Assessments. Secondly, Manual handling, third Display Screen 
Equipment (DSE) assessments (DSE assessments consist of two types of 
assessments self-assessment and home worker assessments). The fourth 
highest assessment total was the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health 
(CoSHH) assessments and the fifth category was Vibration assessments. 
 

2.7 Bar Chart 1. The top five risk assessments by type for the whole Council. 
 

 
 

  

691

501

407
354

126
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Activity Risk
Assessments

Manual
Handling

DSE CoSHH Vibration

Title: Top Five Risk Assessments by type 

Page 16



  
2.8 Bar Chart 2. The top five service areas with the most risk assessments for all 

types of assessments. 
  

 
 

2.9 Due to restructures in 2020/21, there has been a change in departments that 
are in the top five service areas. Leisure and Parks and Street Care remain the 
top two. When both Leisure Services and Parks and Street Care risk 
assessments are combined together they total 1216 or 54% of Council H&S 
risk assessments. The five service areas listed combined together totals 1795, 
or 80% of Council H&S risk assessment profile. The remaining 20% of risk 
assessments amounts to all other remaining service areas not listed, or 451 
assessments. In comparison to last year’s return, it follows a similar pattern 
with the exception of Public Protection now replacing Customer services. 
Transport are likely to have been the realistic third position, but this year 
Economic and Regeneration is an amalgamation of four departments. 
(Property services, estates, welfare support and economic growth). The 
changes are more a result of Council restructures rather than increasing risk 
position of Public Protection or say a reducing picture in Customer services.  
 

2.10 The HSEPO maintains and updates corporate H&S polices and guidance. The 
corporate policies and guidance documents are used by management and 
wider workforce to aid them in meeting Council and individual H&S 
responsibilities. It must be noted this work area was significantly affected by   
the coronavirus pandemic in terms of business as usual policy review work.  
 

3. Accidents and Incidents Reported 
 

3.1 AssessNET is the Council’s main H&S software for recording accidents and 
incidents. The software enables an improved and immediate identification of 
any loss, liability or damage that may lead to a claim against the Council, 
together with any information or explanation required.  

  

759

457
323

166 90
0

100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800

Leisure Parks and Street
Care

Economic
growth and

Regeneration
(inc. Property)

Transports and
Waste

Public
Protection

Title: Top five service areas with the most risk 
assessments *all types   

Page 17



3.2 The HSEPO continued to collate, prepare and submit accident statistics and 
other safety reports for management to measure safety performance.  

  
3.3 Information on accidents, incidents and ill health can aid the review of risk 

assessments, helping to develop solutions to potential risks. These records 
can also help to prevent future injuries and ill health and develop better training 
materials and mitigate costs from accidental loss.  

  
3.4 Bar chart 3. Total number of Accident and Incident (All Adverse Events) for the 

last 7 financial years. From 2014/15 to 2020/21. 
  
 

 
 

3.5 Leading up to 2019/20 the level of reporting for all types of adverse events was 
fairly consistent. There was a significant dip in 2020/21, due to the pandemic  
lockdowns, various tier restrictions, business closures including leisure 
centres, community centres and other venues. All accumulated in a lower level 
of adverse events. Of note, Leisure services saw a dip in total reports. Leisure 
services in normal operations will report the highest number of incidents in 
comparison to any other department. This is due to the nature of the activities 
and services they provide with the majority of incidents being sports or activity 
participation related. In terms of total numbers by year. They were as follows: 
2014/15; 2015/16; 2016/17; 2017/18; 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 saw 271; 
240; 263; 205; 252, 231 and this last year 137 adverse events reported 
respectively. 
 

  

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Total adverse events

Page 18



  
3.6 Bar chart 4. Employee Accidents and incidents (eight year totals)  

 
 

 
 

3.7 Employee injury reports have an eight year mean of 47 accidents and incidents 
each year. In 2020/21 there was 61 employee accidents and incidents which 
resulted in an injury. There was 12 coronavirus related injuries, or 20% of the 
total injuries for 2020/21. With coronavirus related injuried omitted the total for 
2020/21 would have been 49. This represents a very marginal incrase on the 
eight year average.  
 

3.8 Accident Incidence Rate (AIR) 
The H&S profession uses a Accident Incidence Rate Formula. Number of 
work-related injuries × 1,000, divided by the Average number of employees. 
 

 
 

Financial Year Total 
Number of 
employee 
accidents  

multiplier Average 
number  
employees 

AIR 

2020/21 (excluding Covid-
19 injuries) 

49  
 
 
X 1000 

480 102 

2020/21 61 480 127 

2019/20 45 512 88 

2018/19 46 560 82 

2017/18 31 610 51 

2016/17 31 630 49 

    

  
3.9 Employee injuries have shown a fluctutating level reporting historically. The 

HSEPO started in post in January 2014, a suite of accident and incident 
investigation training has been delivered year-on-year, with the exception of 
2020/21. This may explain a degree of the decrease in the first few years 

Page 19



afterwards. Reporting became easier for employees and managers in January 
2018 when AssessNET went live. This may explain the slight rises in 2018/19 
and 2019/21, the exception of 2020/21 saw a large increase in coronavirus 
work related absences. All except one illness and disease report were 
attributed to covid-19, with one other relating to Carpal Tunnal Syndrome 
reportable disease to the HSE in 2020/21. Even with the coronavirus injuried 
omitted the AIR stands at 102 for 2020/21.  

  
3.10 Whilst the workforce has on average decreased in size, the AIR has seen a 

gradual increase. HSEPO believes 2020/21 can be in part accounted for by 
the increased level of employee accidents associated with the pandemic. Many 
factors are attributed to increasing AIR figures. This risk has been highlighted 
to management and future work to address this increasing trend will be 
advised. For example. The HSEPO recommends that as part of service 
planning H&S should be prioritised and placed at the heart of planning 
processes and staff appraisals.  This has proven results, as the standards in 
Community Relations past audit reports previously identifed.  
 

3.11 A healthy reporting culture has high levels of hazard and near miss reporting. 
These are the adverse events that the Council wants to be identified to help 
prevent someone getting hurt or property being damaged. It is believed that 
the increase in reporting is not a reflection of a worsening position, more a 
better reflection of reporting events that were possibly not reported historically 
via the previous paper based system. 

  
3.12 Line chart 2. Shows the number of Hazard reports reported between 2015/16 

to 2020/21. 
A Hazard, ‘is something that has the potential to cause harm’. 

 

 
 

3.13 The year-on-year totals are as follows: 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18; 2018/19, 
2019/20 and 2020/21 were 15, 14, 30, 31, 31 and 12 respectively. A high level 
of hazard reports can be viewed as reflecting a healthy improving reporting 
culture.  
 

3.14 The number of hazards reported initially doubled when AssessNET was first 
introduced (January 2018). The last two years leading up to 2020/21 saw  
marginal increases in the levels of reporting. The hazards reported dropped to 
12 for the last financial year. This is understood to be the ‘covid affect’ which 
saw the buildings, and other facilities largely closed during the lockdown and 

0

10

20

30

40

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Hazards reported

Page 20



Government restrictions encouraging home working. This effectively meant 
there was less officers in our buildings and premises to spot hazards. It is a 
reasonable expectation that hazard reporting should return to pre-covid 
reporting levels once the pandemic is over.  
 

3.15 Bar chart 5. Total Near Miss reports for the last seven years 
Definition of a Near Miss. A Near miss is an event that, while not causing harm,  
has/had the potential to cause injury or ill health 
There was 67 Near Miss reports reported in 2020/21. See bar chart below. 
 

 

 
  
3.16 A large proportion of near misses were associated with coronavirus illness/ 

disease reports linked to potential covid-19 exposures. You will see in 2020/21 
– covid reports amounted to 43 of the total 67 near miss reports in 2020/21 (or 
64% of the total reports). Near miss reports were due to various reasons, 
including misunderstandings between customers disagreeing with or not 
following Council rules, non-compliance issues with Government coronavirus 
guidance and examples of enforcement action. Others related to verbal abuse 
and other violence incidents that occurred but those that did not result in an 
injury, these varied from members of public abusing staff due to missed bins, 
leisure activities and other property related near miss reports. 

  
  

0

20

11
19 18

75

56

24

43

43

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Year 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 -
covid

reports

Near Miss reports

Page 21



  
3.17 Bar chart 6. Property Damage reports for the last six financial years 

 
 

p  

3.18 There was 11 Property Damage reports reported in 2020/21. 
 

3.19 It is believed that the level of property damage reports in recent years is not a 
reflection of a worsening position or that Council is seeing more damage to 
property or property being damaged by Council activities, nor that we have a 
more accident prone workforce. Between 2015/16 to 2020/21 the cumulative 
year totals for property damage reports were 1, 6, 10, 34, 37 and 11 
respectively. The statistics are seen as an improving level of reporting by 
officers that is similar to the increase in hazards reported. It is therefore 
considered to be a better reflection of reality in comparison to under reporting 
in past years. Like with hazards reporting, the ‘covid affect’ has also been a 
factor with property damage reporting levels in 2020/21.  
 

3.20 In summary, the property damage reports included: 
1 Accidental damage / loss incident; 
1 - Theft and Attempted theft incident; 
9 - Vandalism / Malicious Damage incidents. 
 

4. Training Delivered 
 

4.1 The HSEPO delivered a reduced programme of training in 2020/21. This was 
due to training resource being diverted to the coronavirus pandemic 
emergency. In terms of H&S competence of officers, to ensure the Council has 
competent staff to identify and manage risk, it is important that competence is 
evidenced at all levels throughout the Council through training records. This is 
in part achieved through the provision of HSEPO delivered and commissioned 
H&S training. As new ways of delivering internal courses emerge it will be even 
more important that managers and supervisors attend training and ensure their 
teams complete training. For example. Completing modules on the forthcoming 

Page 22



online eLearning platform. Training will refresh skills and knowledge, this will 
be particularly important for officers taking on new duties as a result of 
restructures.  
 

4.2 External commissioned training was delivered from quarter 3 onwards, the 
sessions were completed in a bespoke manner. The providers were accredited 
and qualified to deliver specialist courses. 
 

4.3 Both the manager’s and employee duties to attend training is clearly outlined 
within the Council’s H&S Policy. The Policy stipulates management duties to 
provide sufficient information, instruction, training and supervision, to this end 
to enable all employees to avoid accidents and hazards at work. The Policy 
clearly outlines that all employees have to attend all health and safety training 
sessions arranged on their behalf. It is generally understood in the workplace 
that employees will commonly avoid systems they do not know how to use, no 
matter how intuitive they may be, so training is a must and more often than not 
it is a statutory duty. However, in comparison to the last year, training 
attendance has improved. But this may be premature observation to 
confidently state a significant change has been made given the training 
programme was significantly reduced in comparison to previous years. Both 
late cancellations and non-attendance will need to continue to be closely 
monitored. 
 

4.4 Course facilitated by the HSEPO during 2020/21. 
 

Course type Total employees 
/Councillors 

trained 

Course type (Internal training) – 0  

 0 

Course type (external training) – 3  

Basic Fire Safety training (Nov x 3)  29 

Basic Fire Safety training (Feb And Mar) 21 

Vehicle Fire Safety training (Feb and Mar) 21 

Water safety training (Feb x2) 10 

Total External training sessions attended 
 

81 

Emergency Planning Training   

Resilience direct refresher / familiarisation training  10 

Total Emergency planning sessions attended 10 

Combined training grand total of all training types 91 
 

  
4.5 
 

HSEPO resource available during 2020/21 was largely redirected to the 
coronavirus pandemic and other urgent ad hoc management, leadership 
requests along with flooding and recovery work streams. The limitations of 
one officer resulted in no internal training being delivered.  

  

Page 23



 Bar chart 7. Breakdown of training by delivery type 
 

 

 
  

Bar chart 7 shows training delivery by three main delivery types. In 2015/16 
internal delivery stood at 69% and external delivery 31%. The percentage 
mixed started to first decrease in 2018/19 as external delivery increased 
accordingly. 2019/20 was nearly a 50:50 spilt, and was originally projected to 
move to a 40:60 (internal : external) spilt in 2020/21 and see a gradual decline 
as eLearning started to plug the gap in the training mix. The pandemic and 
other factors outside of the control of the HSEPO such as emergency 
response work reduced internal delivery in 2020/21 to zero, only a marginal 
commencement of eLearning was commenced in leisure services. Leisure 
have been a good example of using initiative to pilot the use of online 
eLearning. This has proven an effective way of training and also delivered 
efficiencies such as cost savings in covering shifts and travel times to attend 
courses. A certain degree of autonomy is also available for eLearning, where 
officers can choose quieter time of their days to compete training. eLearning 
will continue to be rolled out in 2021/22 onwards. In time the predicted delivery 
is expected to largely consist of 10% internal delivery (for example this will 
consist of familiarisation and other internal site specific training), along with 
eLearning delivery will likely consist of 30% of delivery and external facilitated 
training the remaining 60%. This of course is dependant on other factors 
regarding the future delivery model of the HSEPO role and the wider service. 
 

  

Page 24



5. Occupational Health Provision 
 

5.1 H&S occupational health management and surveillance continued to be 
managed. Please note, these functions are in comparison delivered by the 
human resource teams in other local authorities. The HSEPO requested 
resource support and this was agreed by SLT. The occupational health 
contract with the previous supplier Orchard Health came to an early end in 
the middle of 2020 ending our contractual agreement two years early. This 
also occurred at the height of one of the peaks of the pandemic. This created 
an urgent task for the Council notably the HSEPO in what was an already very 
challenging resource period.  
 

5.2 A democratic services officer provided part-time temporary operational 
assistance for just under 4 months. They supported the HSEPO with 
occupational health clinics. Support tasks also included for example: 
 

 Arranging the housekeeping arrangements with the new supplier David 
Barber (OH) Ltd to be established.  

 An employee records transfer  

 A data cleanse exercise 
 

5.3 An example, of one of the benefits of using this new supplier has resulted in 
ongoing cost savings for the Council. All customer service advisors, with a 
few exceptions have been removed from audiometry surveillance. The new 
headsets now used in customer services no longer poses a hearing risk to 
employees, as they have built-in noise limiters. This has effectively removed 
an unnecessary ‘tax’ on the Council and taxpayer. 
 

5.5 The HSEPO completed several health interventions to support employees 
and managers.  
 

5.6 
 

Eyesight test vouchers continued to be issued to employees. Eye sight test 
vouchers are also a legal requirement of the Display Screen Equipment 
Regulations. The Council’s external supplier of eye test vouchers is 
Specsavers. The vouchers on redemption cover the cost of the eye test and 
dependant on circumstance may pay a contribution towards the cost of 
corrective eye wear.  
 

5.7 The levels of vouchers can naturally vary due to personal circumstances such 
as an employee eye condition, officer discomfort and possible changes in 
vision, optometrists and other sources. The number of eye care vouchers 
issued are known to be lower than expected as some officers choose not to 
attend Specsavers and use other opticians that the Council does not provide 
financial support for.   
 

5.8 Driver’s vouchers were issued to any Council officer that use any Council fleet 
vehicle as part of their duties. Driver’s eye care vouchers are effectively an 
incentive for our Drivers to encourage them to have their eyes tested and 
maintain their own legal duty to ensure they can see the legal distance and 
clarity whilst operating vehicles. There is no H&S legislation or Road Traffic 

Page 25



Act legal requirement on the workplace that requires the employer to pay for 
any drivers’ eyesight test. The Council does not have to provide any form of 
contribution towards glasses, this applies to prescription sunglasses used for 
driving as well.  
 

6. Inspections and Audits 
 

6.1 The HSEPO normally completes a pre-agreed plan of H&S audits along with 
unannounced proactive periodic inspections. All H&S audits were 
suspended to divert resource to the emergency response and other urgent 
requests. Several unannounced inspections were completed but this key 
enabler risk reverted to a largely reactive service.  
 

6.2 The HSEPO did continue to identify unsafe practices and complete reactive 
interventions during the financial year, but on a reduced level than normal.  
 

6.3 Recommendations will be submitted to the head of service for Governance 
and Customer services and SLT in regards to resourcing audits moving 
forward once the pandemic has past. 
 

7. Joint Consultation 
 

7.1 There was three Corporate Health and Safety (CHAS) Group meetings held 
in quarters 2, 3 and 4 in 2020/21. CHAS meetings are important consultation 
and communication sessions with the wider workforce via CHAS 
representatives and the UNION safety representative. Every department has 
a CHAS representative that attends and represents their service. A briefing 
note was issued by the HSEPO for every quarter in 2020/21. Emergency 
response requirements meant the first quarter meeting was cancelled.  
 

7.2 The HSEPO held a number of meetings with the UNION H&S representative 
to discuss H&S related matters throughout the year. They were also included 
in key instructions and updates to the workforce. 
 

 8. Partnerships 
 

8.1 The HSEPO in 2020/21 moved to the Chairmanship of the Nottinghamshire 
Risk Management Group (NRMG), where he had held previously the 
secretary position for two years. This group is an important networking group 
of H&S practitioners and other H&S technicians from across Nottinghamshire, 
two Derbyshire local authorities areas, and two other non-local authority 
organisations. This is a valuable group for sharing good practice and learning. 
The NRMG members also provide mutual aid request assistance.  
 

8.2 To enable continued competent advice to the Council, the HSEPO maintains 
his H&S professional membership with the Institute of Occupational Safety 
and Health (IOSH), who attended continuous professional development 
sessions.  

Page 26



8.3 The HSEPO also maintained his full membership of the International 
Institute of Risk and Safety Management (IIRSM); with designatory letters of 
MIIRSM.  

8.4 The Council is a Corporate Member of The Royal Society for the Prevention 
of Accidents (RoSPA). This includes several benefits for Council employees. 
Such as, reduce external training course costs and legal advice amongst 
others.  

8.5 The HSEPO manages two Service Level Agreements with both 
Nottinghamshire County Council and Newark and Sherwood District Council 
who provide assistance and support with certain Category 1 statutory 
functions, as required within the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. The 
partnerships and working relationships developed by the HSEPO have 
proven invaluable in the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) response and 
coordination needed for the coronavirus pandemic. The HSEPO throughout 
the pandemic has provided competent advice, guided management and input 
into coordinating and sub-group cell working groups.  
 

9. Summary of Key Achievements 
 

9.1 H&S practitioner advice was delivered to a high standard juggling business 
as usual requests and the ambitious project programme of the Council. A top 
achievement for the HSEPO was the ability to deliver both an H&S competent 
assistance and lead emergency planning and business continuity service 
throughout the year.  
 

9.2 At the time of writing the report the coronavirus response and  HSEPO outputs 
stood at:  

 80 - Weeks of Covid response / reset commitments. 

 86 – IMT timeline decision logs.  

 18 – H&S personal logs.  

 435 - sets of risk assessment, operating procedures, advice and 
instructions. 

 211 -  emergency response and recovery teleconferences attended. 

 270.5 hours – or 6.5 weeks spent on teleconference calls. 
  
9.3 Face fit testing was prioritised and delivered for employees that required the 

use of close fitting respiratory protective equipment. The HSEPO arranged 
four face fit testing sessions. This work area was required to close a control 
gap identified by the HSEPO during past H&S audits and accident and 
incident investigations. The Council can now demonstrate and evidence 
improved statutory compliance with the Control of Substances Hazardous to 
Health, along with the Personal Protection Equipment Regulations. This work 
was completed in a covid secure manner.  
 

9.4 As of the 10th August 2020 the HSEPO could use the prefix CMIOSH and 
Chartered Safety and Health Practitioner status. As a result of a rigorous 
assessment process and peer review the HSEPO obtained Chartered Status. 
Given the incredibly challenging year this was a noteworthy achievement. 
IOSH are a Chartered body for safety and health professionals and the 

Page 27



profession’s largest membership organisation. IOSH is the only H&S 
organisation in the world where Chartered membership is offered. CMIOSH 
status is the ‘gold standard’ and means that those with CMIOSH are 
effectively at the top of their profession.  
 

9.5 A new health surveillance provider was established. The health surveillance 
arrangements are now the most efficient they have ever been and also require 
less administration resource from the HSEPO. There are also other ongoing 
cost savings.  
 

9.6 H&S Policy review work was able to be completed during some periods of 
respite from the heavy resource demands of the pandemic. Some notably 
improvements included the number of employees completing DSE 
assessments.  
 

9.7 Accident and incident investigations were resourced throughout.  
 

9.8 The HSEPO issued, reviewed and updated the following corporate H&S 
guidance throughout 2020/21: 

1. Volunteer Policy received a review after 8 months, to capture early 
learning since the Policy first went Live in March 2019 for the 
‘Giving for Gedling’ work.  

2. Nottinghamshire Water Safety Partnership - Frozen water guidance 
was adopted as Council guidance.  

3. Covid-19  Thorough examination and testing guidance. 
4. Covid-19 Accident and Incident reporting, relating to RIDDOR 

reportable events. 
5. Several first aid guidance reviews, new covid re-occupation and 

step 4 risk assessment templates and instructions for management. 
6. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) policy guidance, several 

other appendices issued. 
7. Face covering guidance and instructions. 
8. Contractor management instructions. 
9. Cleaning and decontamination instructions.  
10. Permit to work for the coronavirus was also issued.  

 
9.9 The HSEPO wrote a new strategic Business Continuity Policy and associated 

appendices. These were approved by Cabinet in July 2020. All service areas 
completed a review of their BC plans by September 2020. The Council now 
has the most robust BC plans on file.  
 

9.10 A Business Continuity Promotion page was established on the Council’s main 
website. This provides advice and tools for businesses to consider to help 
prepare for emergencies.  
 

9.11 Resource was directed to establish and administer the Council’s Local 
Property Flood Resilience Recovery Scheme 2020. A portfolio report was 
submitted and delegations approved. 
 

Page 28



9.12 Resource was committed to monitor and manage the Council’s Brexit 
implications during the implementation and transition periods. 
  

9.13 The HSEPO completed a review of the Cold weather plan (annual review) in 
November 2020. In addition the Council’s Emergency Plan also received a 
minor review to reflect changes to Council arrangements. 
 

9.14 The Overview and Scrutiny – Flood Group, was also a significant task for 
meeting preparations and wider implementation work. 
  

9.15 Storm Christoph (19th – 25th January 2021) and consequent flooding impacts 
resulted in flood response support whilst the HSEPO was on annual leave.  
 

9.16 Key work stream highlights, where the HSEPO was directly involved in 
developing H&S strategies, risk assessment, instructions and wider 
arrangements includes: 

 the Giving for Gedling – Distribution hub, food parcel service, humanitarian 
response. 

 redeployment of leisure staff to back-fill critical Council functions such as, 
waste collection and street cleansing duties. 

 Agile working implementation operational advice and scores of reasonable 
adjustment enquiries.  

 Re-writing the waste collection risk assessment, collection procedures and 
instructions with the Transport and Waste service manager. 

 Reviewing taxi inspection procedures and brake testing arrangements. 

 Pest control risk assessment and instructions. 

 Re-occupation instructions and assessment arrangements. 

 Civic campus and partner instructions. 
And many others. 
 

10. Planned Activity for 2021/22 
 

10.1 Due to significant emergency planning and business continuity commitments, 
the H&S work plan objectives for 2020/21 will include: 

- A review of the H&S management system.  
- Accident and incident investigations as well statutory reporting to the 

HSE will continue. 
- Health and safety arrangements, such as internal and external 

facilitated training sessions will be planned and delivered in new 
covid secure ways.  

- Audits, inspections and site visits to support Council functions, will be 
delivered where possible or new delivery options recommended to 
SLT. 

- Corporate guidance and instruction delivery, will continue. 
 

10.2 All service areas and departments will be required to complete an Annual 
Statistical return and declaration for their departmental risk assessments.  
 

Page 29



10.3 HSEPO will support the audit of the internal Health and Safety function will be 
conducted by the Council’s internal auditors and answer follow-up enquiries 
to the previous audits. Any agreed recommendations will be supported.  
 

10.4 Senior managers will be briefed on H&S expectations to ensure they are 
conversant and clear on their duties either to remind officers that have moved 
from service manager to Heads of Service roles or those newly promoted.  
 

11. Risk 
  
11.1 The HSEPO provided quarterly risk register updates on the five key H&S 

enablers throughout the year. This also include identifying emerging and 
changing risk ratings.  
  

11.2 Risk registers were developed for both the Response and Recovery (reset) 
elements of the coronavirus emergency. The registers were maintained 
throughout the year. Moving into 2021/22, the risk registers will be updated 
and maintained and the remaining residual risks will be transferred and 
absorbed into departmental risk registers. If necessary a significant risk will 
be elevated to the corporate risk register after an assessment has been made. 
An exercise will be started towards the end of 2021/22 to commence the 
transfer of risks into departmental risk registers. This will be completed in a 
collaborative way with suitable instructions to support management. The 
transfer of risk will ensure that ongoing risks are not overlooked and will 
continue to be managed moving into the ‘new normal’.  
 

11.3 The Corporate Risk Register specifically includes ‘Failure to Protect Staff, 
including Health and Safety’. Which was amber at year end with a target risk 
rating of green. This was predominately around the impacts of the pandemic 
on work streams and delays to development work. Officers continue to be 
engaged in assessing all of the potential risks, and identifying any ineffective 
systems, processes and equipment that can present danger to individuals or 
groups of employees. This is particularly relevant for service delivery and the 
associated H&S and financial impacts. Officers will determine how these can 
be mitigated and managed.  
 

11.4 The HSEPO will continue to identify risk. Once the risk is identified, it will be 
assessed and prioritised for action and managed accordingly. These risks will 
be managed by applying the Council’s Risk Management Strategy and 
Framework, then managed through the departmental risk register and work 
plans. Several risks were identified in 2020/21. Recommendations were and 
continue to be made to the SLT to address these known and emerging risks. 
 

115 In 2020/21, a large amount of resource was directed to the coronavirus 
emergency response and recovery work. HSEPO was also the lead officer 
for implementing the Council’s Local Property Flood Resilience Recovery 
Scheme 2020, this also included raising the profile of the flood impact 
assessments. Emergency incidents and the combined reactive nature of the 
H&S role will remain a significant factor in the delivery of future planned 
objectives in 2021/22.  

Page 30



11.6 Failure of employees to attend H&S training increases the risk to the Council. 
Management will need to closely monitor any employees that fail to attend 
planned training sessions. Looking ahead, eLearning should help address 
some factors of non-attendance issues experienced in past years. It is 
therefore important that attendance is monitored and action taken.  
 

11.7 A key risk enabler that was significantly impacted by the high emergency and 
other business as usual requests was the delivery of H&S audits and 
proactive inspections. SLT will be advised on recommendations to address 
this risk moving forward. The proactive part of the HSE’s HSG65’s ‘Plan, Do, 
Check, Act’ model is auditing and inspecting workplaces, it is a crucial 
element of the H&S management system. Proactive work helps identify issues 
before H&S risks develop into reality and end in an adverse event. Followed 
by possible liability, fines, prosecutions or reputational damage. These tasks 
help check and challenge bad practice, corporate policy non-compliance and 
act as a key control to identify and address statutory non-compliance risks. 
 

12. Conclusions 
 

12.1 In summary 2020/21 was overall an exceptionally challenging year for 
maintaining the H&S management system. The HSEPO made every effort to 
maintain the professional standards and robustness of the H&S management 
system, given the limitations of a single officer and a periodic cycle of short-
term temporary resource support. The service became in many respects a 
reactive service due to no spare capacity to juggle emergencies and other 
associated duties.  
 

12.2 The years of preparation work to prepare the Council for an emergency has 
paid dividends. The exercises, briefings and other training sessions all 
contributed. All of which allowed the Council to respond and recover in a 
dynamic and efficient manner. The pandemic has shown the very best of the 
Council and how collaborative working is needed to get through tough 
periods. The HSEPO has proven how the H&S profession applies pragmatic, 
holistic H&S strategies and a higher level of strategic lateral thinking to the 
workplace. The HSEPO is very proud of what has been achieved.  
 

12.3 In conclusion the HSEPO provided comprehensive coronavirus related 
advice, support and instructions along with the business as usual demands. 
This covered everything from helping interpret Government guidance, 
creating templates and instructions for management, coaching and guiding 
colleagues. In terms of the HSEPO resource committed to the coronavirus 
pandemic during the year, given the high death rates and the continuing 
prevalence of the virus, this is more than justified the resource given the 
severity of the pandemic that followed. 

 
Grant Ilett  

Health, Safety and Emergency Planning Officer 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Report to Joint Consultative and Safety Committee 

 

Subject: Sickness Absence: summary of current trends  
 
Date:  16 November 2021   
 
Author: Head of HR, Performance and Service Planning 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
This is an information item to inform the Committee of the current levels of sickness 
absence in the organisation and to examine trends.  Relevant data is shown at 
Appendix 1; officers will present a verbal report on the context of this data. 
 
As part of the introduction of this item officers will also highlight to the Committee 
through verbal report, any matters of particular current interest in respect to absence 
management. 
 
2. Recommendation 
The Committee is asked to note this report.  
 
3. Summary of key data 

 

 The summary of trends graph in Appendix 1 shows that the outturn for the full 
year up to September 2021 at 9.04 days lost per employee is just above the 
annual target of nine days. This is the first time in four months that absence 
has moved above target. Over the summer absence remained below target 
for three months. 
  

 Although long-term absences continue to account for a substantial amount of 
sickness in terms of the proportion of days lost, the proportion now seems to 
have stabilised over the last three quarters at around 50% of days lost being 
due to long term absence (down from over 64% of days being lost in March 
2020).  
  

 By the end of July a Covid “third wave” had begun to develop nationally and in 
week commencing 26 July there were 16 people who were either self isolating 
due to contact with others (nine staff) or who had tested positive for Covid 
(seven) although by early August only one employee reported to be Covid 
positive.  A change in rules earlier in the year now means that unless 
someone tests positive for Covid or displays symptoms then, if they are 
double-jabbed they need not isolate even if they have been in contact with 
someone who is Covid-positive. Currently, at the end of September there 
were only two people absent from work due to Covid.    
  

 Over the rolling year the larger teams that did not hit target continued to be 
PASC, Customer Services and Transport & Waste. PASC and Waste now 
account for almost all cases of long-term absence. Customer Services did in 
September have a much improved attendance rate and currently have no 
cases of long-term absence.     

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



 

Appendix 1 
 
Summary of trends graph; year to date at September 2021 
 
 

Month Total 

Absence %

FTE Days per 

FTE in Current 

Month

FTE Days per 

FTE 12 Month 

Average

FTE Days 

per FTE per 

Month 

Average

August 20 3.87 0.77 9.86 0.82

September 20 3.35 0.74 9.68 0.81

October 20 3.88 0.85 9.65 0.80

November 20 3.17 0.67 9.79 0.82

December 20 3.44 0.69 9.80 0.82

January 21 3.56 0.71 9.61 0.80

February 21 3.62 0.72 9.80 0.82

March 21 3.32 0.76 9.43 0.79

April 21 3.40 0.68 9.25 0.77

May 21 2.93 0.56 9.15 0.76

June 21 3.02 0.66 8.74 0.73

July 21 3.90 0.86 8.64 0.72

August 21 3.79 0.80 8.53 0.71

September 21 4.32 0.95 9.04 0.75

Summary of Trends

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

A
u
g

u
s
t 2

0

S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 2
0

O
c
to

b
e
r 2

0

N
o
v
e
m

b
e

r 2
0

D
e
c
e
m

b
e

r 2
0

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
1

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
1

M
a

rc
h
 2

1

A
p
ril 2

1

M
a

y
 2

1

J
u

n
e

 2
1

J
u

ly
 2

1

A
u
g

u
s
t 2

1

S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 2
1

F
T

E
 D

a
y
s
 p

e
r 

M
o

n
th

FTE Days Per FTE in Current Month 12 Month Rolling Average

 

Page 34



 

Year to date absence data, by service area with six month trend 
Days Lost Per FTE Employee: Year to September 2021 Year to date trend

Service Section Fte

 At Start

Fte

 At End

Average

 Fte

No Emps 

Sick 

FTE

FTE

 Days Lost

FTE Days 

Lost per FTE % Rate of 

absence

Days lost 

1 month 

ago

Days lost 

2 months 

ago

Days lost 

3 months 

ago

Days lost 

4 months 

ago

Days lost 

5 months 

ago

Days lost 

6 months 

ago

Corporate Resources Customer Services 21.87 21.47 21.67 13.09 238.58 11.01 4.33% 10.78 10.57 10.31 9.44 8.17 6.01

Democratic Services and H&S 8.69 8.69 8.69 2.18 54.50 6.27 2.49% 7.58 8.63 10.14 10.93 11.19 9.08

Financial Services 9.58 8.58 9.08 2.12 9.22 1.02 0.38% 1.48 1.23 1.19 1.20 1.20 1.20

HR, Performance and Svs Planning 4.74 4.74 4.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.29

Information & Communications Technology 8.00 8.00 8.00 2.00 6.00 0.75 0.30% 0.38 0.63 0.63 0.25 0.25 0.25

Legal Services 4.86 4.68 4.77 2.42 21.85 4.58 1.78% 3.56 3.89 3.13 3.28 3.28 4.07

Revenues 11.65 11.87 11.76 5.91 115.76 9.84 3.94% 8.05 7.13 6.20 8.55 10.23 11.09

3.00 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Service Total: 72.40 71.02 71.71 27.72 445.91 6.22
2.44%

Environment, Communities & Leisure Community Relations 5.81 5.95 5.88 1.00 2.70 0.46 0.18% 0.42 0.42 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.28

Leisure Services 54.98 52.36 53.67 20.93 335.17 6.24 2.42% 5.76 5.46 5.45 6.35 6.46 7.52

Parks and Street Care 49.01 48.61 48.81 26.65 664.53 13.61 5.38% 12.82 13.85 14.83 14.47 14.61 15.33

Public Protection 28.05 28.05 28.05 8.76 223.34 7.96 3.16% 7.94 8.67 9.15 9.50 10.22 10.62

Transport and Waste 64.34 62.34 63.34 40.07 1082.06 17.08 6.67% 16.08 15.86 15.65 16.52 16.54 16.44

3.00 3.00 3.00 1.00 3.00 1.00 0.40% 1.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Service Total: 205.19 200.32 202.75 98.40 2310.80 11.40
4.47%

Regeneration, Development and Comms Communications 3.45 3.45 3.45 1.00 1.00 0.29 0.12% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Development Services 16.69 16.69 16.69 4.32 85.93 5.15 2.04% 4.54 5.86 7.22 8.22 8.93 9.87

Economic Growth and Regeneration 6.00 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Facilities- Community Centres 3.08 3.08 3.08 1.22 33.10 10.74 4.26% 15.42 19.25 22.24 25.09 25.90 28.61

Planning Policy 4.24 4.24 4.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Property 9.58 9.58 9.58 3.36 116.03 12.11 4.81% 9.45 7.60 5.99 6.07 5.74 5.36

Welfare Support 19.89 19.89 19.89 7.15 84.40 4.24 1.68% 4.08 3.62 4.02 3.73 3.80 4.09

3.00 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Service Total: 65.93 65.93 65.93 17.05 320.46 4.86
1.93%

Grand Total: 343.52 337.27 340.39 143.17 3077.17 9.04
3.55%

8.53 8.64 8.74 9.15 9.25 9.43

 
 

P
age 35



 

Current month’s absence data, by service area with six month trend 

Days lost per FTE employee: September 2021 Current month trend

Service Section Fte

 At Start

Fte

 At End

Average

 Fte

No Emps Sick 

FTE

FTE

 Days Lost

FTE Days 

Lost per FTE

% Absence
Days lost 

1 month 

ago

Days lost 

2 months 

ago

Days lost 

3 months 

ago

Days lost 

4 months 

ago

Days lost 

5 months 

ago

Days lost 

6 months 

ago

Corporate Resources Customer Services 21.87 21.47 21.67 1.00 3.00 0.14 0.63% 0.32 1.09 1.03 1.30 2.17 2.29

Democratic Services and H&S 8.69 8.69 8.69 1.00 1.00 0.12 0.52% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 1.66

Financial Services 9.58 8.58 9.08 0.81 3.04 0.33 1.52% 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

HR, Performance and Svs Planning 4.74 4.74 4.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Information & Communications Technology 8.00 8.00 8.00 1.00 3.00 0.38 1.70% 0.00 0.00 0.38 0.00 0.00 0.00

Legal Services 4.86 4.68 4.77 0.61 1.01 0.21 0.97% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Revenues 11.65 11.87 11.76 3.59 28.57 2.43 11.04% 2.15 1.67 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00

3.00 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Service Total: 72.40 71.02 71.71 8.01 39.62 0.55 2.51%

Environment, Communities & Leisure Community Relations 5.81 5.95 5.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Leisure Services 54.98 52.36 53.67 5.74 46.00 0.86 3.90% 0.89 0.60 0.46 0.68 0.22 0.40

Parks and Street Care 49.01 48.61 48.81 7.00 77.00 1.58 7.17% 0.75 0.98 1.59 0.71 1.08 1.25

Public Protection 28.05 28.05 28.05 1.76 10.27 0.37 1.66% 0.14 0.00 0.31 0.13 0.36 0.00

Transport and Waste 64.34 62.34 63.34 13.68 112.10 1.77 8.04% 1.69 2.13 1.23 1.03 1.07 1.27

3.00 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Service Total: 205.19 200.32 202.75 28.17 245.37 1.21 5.50%

Regeneration, Development and Comms Communications 3.45 3.45 3.45 1.00 1.00 0.29 1.32% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Development Services 16.69 16.69 16.69 2.00 7.00 0.42 1.91% 0.00 0.00 0.32 0.58 0.71 0.93

Economic Growth and Regeneration 6.00 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Facilities- Community Centres 3.08 3.08 3.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1.81 2.47 2.82 2.07 0.00 0.00

Planning Policy 4.24 4.24 4.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Property 9.58 9.58 9.58 1.34 22.41 2.34 10.63% 2.26 1.74 0.22 0.38 0.12 0.52

Welfare Support 19.89 19.89 19.89 2.00 8.00 0.40 1.83% 0.55 0.34 0.00 0.21 0.20 0.91

2.00 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Service Total: 65.93 65.93 65.93 6.34 38.41 0.59 2.65%

Grand Total: 343.52 337.27 340.39 42.52 323.40 0.95 4.32% 0.80 0.86 0.66 0.56 0.68 0.76

 

P
age 36



 

Long term (20 days+ in month)/ short term sickness analysis for September 2021 
 

Analysis of Short and Long Term Absence - September 2021

Head of 

Service

Section No 

Occurrences

Long Term

Total No

Occurrences 

Absent

Long Term

FTE Days Lost

Total FTE 

Days Lost

Long Term as a 

% of Days Lost

Long Term as a

 % of Occurrences

Corporate Resources Customer Services 0 1 0.00 2.94 0.00% 0.00%

Democratic Services and H&S 0 1 0.00 0.98 0.00% 0.00%

Financial Services 0 1 0.00 2.96 0.00% 0.00%

Information & Communications Technology 0 1 0.00 2.94 0.00% 0.00%

Legal Services 0 1 0.00 0.99 0.00% 0.00%

Revenues 1 5 20.55 28.06 73.22% 20.00%

Head of Service Total: 1 10 20.55 38.85 52.88% 10.00%

Environment, Communities & Leisure Leisure Services 1 12 7.46 41.22 18.10% 8.33%

Parks and Street Care 2 7 43.05 75.34 57.14% 28.57%

Public Protection 1 2 8.80 9.78 89.99% 50.00%

Transport and Waste 3 14 63.59 107.27 59.28% 21.43%

Head of Service Total: 7 35 122.90 233.61 52.61% 20.00%

Regeneration, Development and Comms Communications 0 1 0.00 0.98 0.00% 0.00%

Development Services 0 2 0.00 6.85 0.00% 0.00%

Property 1 2 21.52 21.93 98.15% 50.00%

Welfare Support 0 3 0.00 7.83 0.00% 0.00%

Head of Service Total: 1 8 21.52 37.58 57.27% 12.50%

Grand Total: 9 53 164.97 310.04 53.21% 16.98%

 
 

  

P
age 37



 

Long term (20 days+ in month)/ short term sickness analysis for June 2021  

 

  

P
age 38



 

Long term (20 days+ in month)/ short term sickness analysis for March 2021 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

Report to Joint Consultative and Safety Committee 

 

Subject: Information item: Minor changes to the Establishment agreed 
outside the formal full JCSC process (Standing Item).   

 
Date:  16 November 2021  
 
Author: Head of HR, Performance and Service Planning 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
This is a standing information item highlighting to the Committee any minor changes to 
the Establishment proposed by the Senior Leadership Team for implementation 
outside the formal full JCSC process but following consultation with trade unions.  
Such minor changes will not have wide organisational impact and will be authorised 
for implementation by the Chief Executive under delegated powers. 
 
2. Recommendation 
The Committee is asked to note this report.  
 
3. Background 
Prior to the minor changes being implemented local trade unions are always be 
consulted.  Should there be concern raised during this consultation about any 
proposal made the proposal would be taken out of this “shortened process” and 
placed before the Joint Consultative Committee for full consideration. All new posts 
have been job evaluated through formal arrangements. 
 
4. Summary of proposals 
Since the last JCSC meeting there has been one staffing proposal affecting the 
permanent Establishment that has been considered by Senior Leadership Team 
outside the full JCSC framework; 
 
Environmental Services  
Within the report, in addition to the creation of a Climate Change Officer, a number of 
minor changes were agreed relating to existing posts as follows: 

 Deletion of the vacant post of PASC Semi Skilled Team Worker (DPS12B); Band 2 

 Deletion of the vacant post of Neighbourhood Warden (EEE09F); Band 6 

 Reduction in hours (from 37 to 18.5 hours per week) of the vacant PASC Cemetery 

Attendant (DPS14); Band 3 

 Reduction in hours (from 37 to 30 hours per week) of the Neighbourhood Warden 

(EEE09E); Band 6 

 Creation of the post of Climate Change Officer (post reference DPS23) – Band 9 

The reduction in hours of the Neighbourhood Warden Post followed a request for 
reduction by the post holder some time ago since when a reduced working week had 
been operating through a temporary variation to contract. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

Report to Joint Consultative and Safety Committee 

 

Subject: Current staffing issues (Standing Item)   
 
Date:  16 November 2021 
 
Author: Head of HR, Performance and Service Planning 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
This is an information item highlighting to the Committee, any issues of particular 
interest that relate to the council’s workforce.  
 
2. Recommendation 
 
The Committee is asked to note this report.  
 
3. Summary of current issues 

 
3.1 National Pay Award 
 
The Staff Side for the NJC (the terms and conditions under which most staff of the 
council are employed) has rejected the final offer made by Employers of a 1.75% 
pay rise. UNISON members voted 79% to 21% to reject; GMB members voted 75% 
to 25% to reject. The unions are all now in the process of conducting industrial action 
ballots. 
  
In respect to Chief Executive and Chief Officer pay, the National Employers made 
final pay offers of 1.50% to both groups. Both the respective Staff Sides rejected the 
final offers and asked the employers to reconsider and instead meet their claims for 
“equality of treatment with the generality of local government staff”.  
 
The National Employers’ response was to reaffirm their final pay offers and urged the 
Staff Sides to accept them.  
 
For industrial action ballots the law requires that there is a ballot of employees in 
accordance with strict legal requirements before industrial action is called for or 
endorsed. Only where such a ballot produces a majority in favour of industrial action 
and at least 50% of those eligible to vote have voted will the action be lawful.  
The ballot will only be effective for and mandate industrial action that takes place 
within six months, beginning with the date of the ballot (which is the date the ballot 
closes).  
 
In previous disputes, all three unions have balloted members on an aggregated 
basis. This means that to take action, 50% of their national memberships were 
required to vote. This time, it may be likely that one or more of the unions may 
operate on a disaggregated basis. This means that action could be taken at each 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



 

 

organisation where a turn-out of over 50% is secured (if members vote in favour 
strike action). 
 
 
3.2 Employee Conference 
 
This year’s employee conference was held in the Bonington Theatre. The theme was 
equality and diversity (and titled, “how we treat each other”). A drama-based training 
company was commissioned to deliver the event which used sketches performed by 
actors together with Q&A sessions with those actors still “in character” to bring out 
behaviours that will and won’t be acceptable at work.  
 
Feedback confirmed that the event delivered its objectives effectively.   
 
 
3.3 Employee Survey 
 
The Council undertakes a staff survey every two years. This has just closed. The return 
rate was good at around 42% of staff contributing and this time, due to changed 
methodology there has been an excellent return from colleagues in PASC and Waste. 
Information about the survey results will come to a future meeting of this committee.    

Page 44


	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 31 August 2021
	4 Annual Health and Safety Report
	Appendix 1. ANNUAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT 2020-21 - Cabinet

	5 Sickness Absence
	6 Minor Changes to the Establishment
	7 Current Staffing Issues

